GRAS Notice (GRN) No. 1077 with amendments
https://www.fda.gov/food/generally-recognized-safe-gras/gras-notice-inventory



























































































































































































































GRAS Notice (GRN) No. 1077 Amendments

From: DiFranco, Stephen

To: Severin Mueller

Subject: GRN 001077 oat polar lipid extract
Date: Thursday, June 1, 2023 1:17:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Dear Mr. Mueller,

We have reviewed your notice GRN 1077 for oat polar lipid extract. Unfortunately, in the notice’s
current form, our staff cannot concur with your GRAS conclusion based on the information included
and issue a “No questions” letter.

Some of these issues were expressed previously during the review of GRN 941 —also on oat polar
lipid extract—which we subsequently ceased to evaluate. In our March 15, 2023, meeting we
discussed several overarching issues present in the current notice, citing deficiencies in the safety
narrative and 28-day feeding study which was considered pivotal to your safety decision.

We would like to give you the opportunity to ask that we cease to evaluate this notice instead of
issuing a “No basis” letter.

You are welcome to revise the notice and resubmit to the GRAS Notification program at a later date,
without prejudice. In the interest of informing a future submission on oat polar lipid extract, please
see below for a detailed list of the issues our reviewers flagged. Prior to resubmission we would
encourage you to hold a pre-notification meeting with.

Please let me know your decision.
Best,

Steve

Stephen DiFranco, PhD

Regulatory Review Scientist/Chemist

Center for Food Safety and Applied Nutrition
Office of Food Additive Safety

Division of Food Ingredients

U.S. Food and Drug Administration

Tel: 240-402-2710
stephen.difranco@fda.hhs.gov
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Chemistry:

Chemistry recommends that the following two questions/comments be conveyed to the notifier for
GRN 1077:

1. In general, the questions posed by the chemistry reviewer to the notifier for GRAS notice 941
(same substance as GRN 1077, but different named notifier) have been addressed in GRN
1077. In addition, we note that the Microbiology reviewer indicated that the notifier
addressed all the specification questions raised by Microbiology in GRN 941. However, for
completeness of the record, the Microbiology reviewer recommended that the notifier
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provide updated certificates of analysis (COAs) that include results for the Salmonella serovars
specification.

2. FDA requests that the notifier provide the list of NHANES food codes used to perform the
exposure estimate for oat polar lipid extract found in Part 3 of GRN 1077.

3. FDA requests further clarification regarding the stability testing performed on oat polar lipid
extract as outlined in Part 2.4 of GRN 1077. In particular, the data supporting the stability
testing as provided in Appendix B of GRN 1077 do not appear to be complete. The description
in Part 2.4 indicates that at least four lots of oat polar lipid extract were analyzed for water
content over 24 months. However, the data included in Appendix B only provide information
on water content for a single lot. We request that the summary data for the water content
for the four lots of oat polar lipid extract over the 24 month testing period be provided.
Likewise, we request clarification on the number of lots of oat polar lipid extract that were
tested for peroxide values over time. Appendix B provides summary data for two lots of oat
polar lipid extract, however, the narrative in Part 2.4 does not indicate the number of lots that
were tested for peroxide values. Please clarify the number of lots of oat polar lipid extract
that were tested for peroxide values over time.

4. The GRAS notice indicates that it is difficult to measure the unique glycolipids found in oats.

In that regard, information on the composition of glycolipids provided in Table 2.1.5 of the
notice is based on polar lipid profiles of oat kernels published by USDA rather than actual
analysis of glycolipids in oat polar lipid extract. Further discussion as to why the data
presented by USDA on glycolipids in oat kernels would be representative of the concentration
of glycolipids found in-oat polar lipid extract would be helpful.

Toxicology:

From a toxicology standpoint, this GRN does not meet the standards of GRAS status
because there are no publicly available safety studies that could support the proposed
exposure levels.

5. The published studies discussed in the GRN to support the safety of the ingredient were
not designed as safety studies. Additionally, the oat oils tested in these studies are not
oat oil PL40 (the subject of the GRN) and have different ratios of polar lipids to
triglycerides.

6. It should be emphasized that >95% of dietary lipids is triglyceride, whose ADME is
discussed in textbooks and hence generally recognized. However, the ADME of other
lipids remains less clear.

7. It is not clear what the safe level of exposure of such lipids, including that of the oat oil
PL40, is in a lifetime consumption scenario.

8. There is no published long-term animal study with the oat oil PL40. So, there is no
reference point of a safe dose that could be used to determine an acceptable daily
intake level.

9. The 28-day oral toxicity studies performed with oat oil PL40 are not published and the
notifier states that these are not pivotal safety studies. However, the NOAEL and ADI
have been determined based on these studies. Therefore, the NOAEL and ADI are not
acceptable because in the GRAS program the pivotal safety data have to be publicly
available (such as published).



10. The consumption of oat oil PL40 is expected to be long term, if not for lifetime. The
human tolerance studies are not safety studies, and the study design does not establish
the safety of the ingredient at the proposed exposure level.



From: Severin Mueller

To: DiFranco, Stephen
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CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and
know the content is safe.

Dear Mr. DiFranco,

Would you please confirm receipt of this request that the U.S. FDA cease to evaluate GRAS Notification GRN 1077
for oat polar lipid extract.

We acknowledge that although not the intent of our submission, the FDA has considered the 28-day feeding studies
pivotal to the safety decision and derived the NOAEL/ADI from these studies, but that these data are not publicly
available.

With best regards
Severin

Dr. Severin Mueller
Global Head Scientific Affairs, Taste & Wellbeing

Phone: +41523540541, Mobile:+41791728258
Givaudan International SA, Kemptpark 50, 8310 Kemptthal, Switzerland. www.givaudan.com

Instagram, Linkedin, Twitter, Facebook, YouTube

On Thu, 1 Jun 2023 at 19:17, DiFranco, Stephen <Stephen.DiFranco@fda.hhs.gov> wrote:
Dear Mr. Mueller,

We have reviewed your notice GRN 1077 for oat polar lipid extract. Unfortunately, in the notice’s current form, our
staff cannot concur with your GRAS conclusion based on the information included and issue a “No questions”
letter.

Some of these issues were expressed previously during the review of GRN 941—also on oat polar lipid extract—
which we subsequently ceased to evaluate. In our March 15, 2023, meeting we discussed several overarching issues
present in the current notice, citing deficiencies in the safety narrative and 28-day feeding study which was
considered pivotal to your safety decision.

We would like to give you the opportunity to ask that we cease to evaluate this notice instead of issuing a “No
basis™ letter.

You are welcome to revise the notice and resubmit to the GRAS Notification program at a later date, without
prejudice. In the interest of informing a future submission on oat polar lipid extract, please see below for a detailed
list of the issues our reviewers flagged. Prior to resubmission we would encourage you to hold a pre-notification
meeting with.

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
tephen.difran fda.hhs.gov
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Chemistry:

Chemistry recommends that the following two questions/comments be conveyed to the notifier for GRN 1077:

1. In general, the questions posed by the chemistry reviewer to the notifier for GRAS notice 941 (same

substance as GRN 1077, but different named notifier) have been addressed in GRN 1077. In addition, we
note that the Microbiology reviewer indicated that the notifier addressed all the specification questions raised
by Microbiology in GRN 941. However, for completeness of the record, the Microbiology reviewer
recommended that the notifier provide updated certificates of analysis (COAs) that include results for the
Salmonella serovars specification.

. FDA requests that the notifier provide the list of NHANES food codes used to perform the exposure estimate
for oat polar lipid extract found in Part 3 of GRN 1077.

. FDA requests further clarification regarding the stability testing performed on oat polar lipid extract as
outlined in Part 2.4 of GRN 1077. In particular, the data supporting the stability testing as provided in
Appendix B of GRN 1077 do not appear to be complete. The description in Part 2.4 indicates that at least
four lots of oat polar lipid extract were analyzed for water content over 24 months. However, the data
included in Appendix B only provide information on water content for a single lot. We request that the
summary data for the water content for the four lots of oat polar lipid extract over the 24 month testing period
be provided. Likewise, we request clarification on the number of lots of oat polar lipid extract that were
tested for peroxide values over time. Appendix B provides summary data for two lots of oat polar lipid
extract, however, the narrative in Part 2.4 does not indicate the number of lots that were tested for peroxide
values. Please clarify the number of lots of oat polar lipid extract that were tested for peroxide values over
time.

. The GRAS notice indicates that it is difficult to measure the unique glycolipids found in oats. In that regard,
information on the composition of glycolipids provided in Table 2.1.5 of the notice is based on polar lipid
profiles of oat kernels published by USDA rather than actual analysis of glycolipids in oat polar lipid extract.
Further discussion as to why the data presented by USDA on glycolipids in oat kernels would be
representative of the concentration of glycolipids found in-oat polar lipid extract would be helpful.

Toxicology:

From a toxicology standpoint, this GRN does not meet the standards of GRAS status because there are
no publicly available safety studies that could support the proposed exposure levels.

5. The published studies discussed in the GRN to support the safety of the ingredient were not designed as
safety studies. Additionally, the oat oils tested in these studies are not oat oil PL40 (the subject of the GRN)
and have different ratios of polar lipids to triglycerides.

6. It should be emphasized that >95% of dietary lipids is triglyceride, whose ADME is discussed in textbooks
and hence generally recognized. However, the ADME of other lipids remains less clear.



7. Tt is not clear what the safe level of exposure of such lipids, including that of the oat oil PL40, is in a lifetime
consumption scenario.

8. There is no published long-term animal study with the oat oil PL40. So, there is no reference point of a safe
dose that could be used to determine an acceptable daily intake level.

9. The 28-day oral toxicity studies performed with oat oil PL40 are not published and the notifier states that
these are not pivotal safety studies. However, the NOAEL and ADI have been determined based on these
studies. Therefore, the NOAEL and ADI are not acceptable because in the GRAS program the pivotal safety
data have to be publicly available (such as published).

10. The consumption of oat oil PL40 is expected to be long term, if not for lifetime. The human tolerance studies
are not safety studies, and the study design does not establish the safety of the ingredient at the proposed
exposure level.

Dr. Severin Mueller
2] Global Head Scientific Affairs, Taste & Wellbeing

Phone: +41523540541, Mobile:+41791728258
Givaudan International SA, Kemptpark 50, 8310 Kemptthal, Switzerland. www.givaudan.com

Instagram, Linkedin, Twitter, Facebook, YouTube
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